Sixteenth Series, Vol. XXVII No. 1

Friday, December 15, 2017

Agrahayana 24, 1939 (Saka)

### LOK SABHA DEBATES (English Version)

Thirteenth Session (Sixteenth Lok Sabha)



(Vol. XXVII contains Nos.1 to10)

# LOK SABHA SECRETARIAT NEW DELHI

### EDITORIAL BOARD

Utpal Kumar Singh Secretary-General Lok Sabha

Mamta Kemwal Joint Secretary

Amar Singh Director

SunitaUpadhyay Joint Director

Ajeena Jacob Editor

#### © 2017 Lok Sabha Secretariat

None of the material may be copied, reproduced, distributed, republished, downloaded, displayed, posted or transmitted in any form or by any means, including but not limited to, electronic, mechanical, photocopying, recording or otherwise, without the prior permission of Lok Sabha Secretariat. However, the material can be displayed, copied, distributed and downloaded for personal, non-commercial use only, provided the material is not modified and all copyright and other proprietary notices contained in the material are retained.

This English Version has been translated with the help of AI based software application and reasonable efforts have been made to provide an accurate translation. However, if any questions arise related to the accuracy of the translated text. Original English proceedings included in English Versions will be treated as authoritative and not the English translation of the speeches made in Hindi and other languages included in it. For complete authoritative version please see Original Version of Lok Sabha Debates.

### **CONTENTS**

## Sixteenth Series, Vol. XXVII, Thirteenth Session, 2017-2018/1939(Saka)

## No. 1, Friday, December 15, 2017/Agrahayana 24, 1939(Saka)

<u>SUBJECT</u>	<b>PAGES</b>
ALPHABETICAL LIST OF MEMBERS OF SIXTEENTH LOK SABHA	4-25
OFFICERS OF LOK SABHA	26
COUNCIL OF MINISTERS	27-36
NATIONAL ANTHEM	37
MEMBERS SWORN	37
INTRODUCTION OF MINISTERS	38-39
ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER Appointment of Secretary-General	40
OBITUARY REFERENCES	41-46
WRITTEN ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS	47
Starred Question Nos. 1 to 20	
*Unstarred Question Nos. 1 to 38, 40 to 198 and 200 to 230	

<sup>\*</sup>Unstarred Question No.39 and 199 were deleted due to resignation by the Member.

#### **ALPHABETICAL LIST OF MEMBERS OF SIXTEENTH LOK SABHA**

Abdullah, Dr. Farooq (Srinagar)

Adhikari, Shri Deepak (Dev) (Ghatal)

Adhikari, Shri Dibyendu (Tamluk)

Adhikari, Shri Sisir Kumar (Kanthi)

Adsul, Shri Anandrao (Amravati)

Advani, Shri L.K. (Gandhinagar)

Agrawal, Shri Rajendra (Meerut)

Ahir, Shri Hansraj Gangaram (Chandrapur)

Ahlawat, Shrimati Santosh (Jhunjhunu)

Ahluwalia, Shri S.S. (Darjeeling)

Ajmal, Shri Badruddin (Dhubri)

Ajmal, Shri Sirajuddin (Barpeta)

Ali, Shri Idris (Basirhat)

Amarappa, Shri KaradiSanganna (Koppal)

Ananthkumar, Shri (Bangalore South)

Angadi, Shri Suresh C. (Belagavi)

Antony, Shri Anto (Pathanamthitta)

Anwar, Shri Tariq (Katihar)

Arunmozhithevan, Shri A. (Cuddalore)

Aujla, Shri Gurjeet Singh (Amritsar)

Azad, Shri Kirti (Darbhanga)

Babu, Dr. Ravindra (Amalapuram)

Badal, Shrimati Harsimrat Kaur (Bhatinda)

Baheria, Shri Subhash Chandra (Bhilwara) Baig, Shri Muzaffar Hussain (Baramulla) Bais, Shri Ramesh (Raipur) Baite, Shri Thangso (Outer Manipur) Baker, Shri George (Nominated) Bakshi, Shri Subrata (Kolkata Dakshin) Bala, Shrimati Anju (Misrikh) Balyan, Dr. Sanjeev (Muzaffarnagar) Bandyopadhyay, Shri Sudip (Kolkata Uttar) Banerjee, Shri Abhishek (Diamond Harbour) Banerjee, Shri Kalyan (Sreerampur) Banerjee, Shri Prasun (Howrah) Bansode, Adv. SharadkumarMaruti (Solapur) Barman, Shri Bijoy Chandra (Jalpaiguri) Barne, Shri Shrirang Appa (Maval) Baruah, Shri Pradan (Lakhimpur) Basheer, Shri E. T. Mohammad (Ponnani) Bhabhor, Shri JasvantsinhSumanbhai (Dahod) Bhagat, Shri Bodh Singh (Balaghat) Bhagat, Shri Sudarshan (Lohardaga) Bhamre, Dr. SubhashRamrao (Dhule) Bharathi Mohan, Shri R.K. (Mayiladuthurai) Bharti, Sushri Uma (Jhansi) Bhatt, ShrimatiRanjanben (Vadodara) Bhole, Shri Devendra Singh (Akbarpur)

Bhonsale, Shri Chh. Udayanraje (Satara) Bhuria, Shri Kanti Lal (Ratlam) Bidhuri, Shri Ramesh (South Delhi) Biju, Dr. P. K. (Alathur) Birla, Shri Om (Kota) Biswas, Shri Radheshyam (Karimganj) Bohra, Shri Ramcharan (Jaipur City) Bose, Prof. Sugata (Jadavpur) Brahmpura, Shri Ranjit Singh (Khadoor Sahib) Chakravarty, Shrimati Bijoya (Guwahati) Chand, Shri Nihal (Ganganagar) Chandel, Kunwar Pushpendra Singh (Hamirpur) Chandrakasi, Shri M. (Chidambaram) Chandrappa, Shri B. N. (Chitradurga) Chandumajra, Shri Prem Singh (Anandpur Sahib) Chaudhary, Shri C. R. (Nagaur) Chaudhary, Shri Haribhai (Banaskantha) Chaudhary, Shri P.P. (Pali) Chaudhary, Shri Pankaj (Maharajganj) Chaudhary, Shri Ram Tahal (Ranchi) Chaudhary, Shri Santokh Singh (Jalandhar) Chaudhury, Shri Jitendra (Tripura East) Chauhan, Shri Devusinh (Kheda) Chauhan, Shri P. P. (Panchmahal) Chautala, Shri Dushyant (Hisar)

Chavan, Shri Ashok Shankarrao (Nanded) Chavan, Shri Harishchandra (Dindori) Chavda, Shri Vinod Lakhmashi (Kachchh) Chhewang, Shri Thupstan (Ladakh) Chhotelal, Shri (Robertsganj) Chinnaiyan, Shri S. Selvakumara (Erode) Choubey, Shri Ashwini Kumar (Buxar) Choudhary, Col. Sonaram (Barmer) Choudhary, Shri Babulal (Fatehpur Sikri) Choudhary, Shri Birendra Kumar (Jhanjharpur Chouhan, Shri Nandkumar Singh (Khandwa) Chowdhury, Shri A. H. Khan (MaldahaDakshin) Chowdhury, Shri AdhirRanjan (Baharampur) Chudasama, Shri Rajeshbhai (Junagadh) Danve, Shri RaosahebPatil (Jalna) Dastidar, Dr. Kakoli Ghosh (Barasat) Datta, Shri Sankar Prasad (Tripura West) Dattatreya, Shri Bandaru (Secunderabad) De(Nag), Dr. Ratna (Hooghly) Deka, Shri Ramen (Mangaldai) Deo, Shri Arka Keshari (Kalahandi) Deo, Shri Kalikesh N. Singh (Bolangir) Dev, KumariSushmita (Silchar) Devegowda, Shri H.D. (Hassan) Devi, Shrimati Rama (Sheohar)

Devi, Shrimati Veena (Munger) Dharambir, Shri (Bhiwani-Mahendragarh) Dhotre, Shri Sanjay (Akola) Dhruvanarayana, Shri R. (Chamarajanagar) Dhurve, ShrimatiJyoti (Betul) Dohre, Shri Ashok Kumar (Etawah) Diwakar, Shri Rajesh Kumar (Hathras) Dubey, Shri Nishikant (Godda) Dubey, Shri Satish Chandra (Valmiki Nagar) Dwivedi, Shri Harishchandra alias Harish (Basti) Elumalai, Shri V. (Arani) Engti, Shri Biren Singh (Autonomous District) Ering, Shri Ninong (Arunachal East) Faizal, Mohammed (Lakshadweep) Fatepara, Shri Devjibhai G. (Surendranagar) Gaddigoudar, Shri P.C. (Bagalkot) Gadkari, Shri Nitin (Nagpur) Gaikwad, Dr. Sunil Baliram (Latur) Gaikwad, Prof. Ravindra Vishwanath (Osmanabad) Galla, Shri Jayadev (Guntur) Gandhi, Shri Dharam Vira (Patiala) Gandhi, Shri DilipkumarMansukhlal (Ahmadnagar) Gandhi, Shri Feroze Varun (Sultanpur) Gandhi, Shri Rahul (Amethi) Gandhi, Shrimati Maneka Sanjay (Pilibhit)

Gandhi, Shrimati Sonia (Raibareilly)

Gangwar, Shri Santosh Kumar (Bareilly)

Gautam, Shri Satish Kumar (Aligarh)

Gavit, Dr. Heena Vijaykumar (Nandurbar)

Gawali(Patil), ShrimatiBhavana (Yavatmal-Washim)

Geete, Shri AnantGangaram (Raigad)

Geetha, ShrimatiKothapalli (Araku)

George, Adv. Joice (Idukki)

Ghosh, ShrimatiArpita (Balurghat)

Ghubaya, Shri Sher Singh (Ferozepur)

Giluwa, Shri Laxman (Singhbhum)

Girri, Shri Maheish (East Delhi)

Godse, Shri Hemant Tukaram (Nashik)

Gogoi, Shri Gaurav (Kaliabor)

Gohain, Shri Rajen (Nowgong)

Gopal, Dr. K. (Nagapattinam)

Gopalakrishnan, Shri C. (Nilgiris)

Gopalakrishnan, Shri R. (Madurai)

Goud, Dr. Boora Narsaiah (Bhongir)

Gowda, Shri D.V. Sadananda (Bangalore North)

Gowda, Shri S.P. Muddahanume (Tumkur)

Gupta, Shri Shyama Charan (Allahabad)

Gupta, Shri Sudheer (Mandsaur)

Gurjar, Shri Krishanpal (Faridabad)

Hansdah, Shri Ramchandra (Mayurbhanj)

Hansdak, Shri Vijay Kumar (Rajmahal)

Haque, Shri Mohd. Asrarul (Kishanganj)

Hari, Shri G. (Arakkonam)

Haribabu, Dr. Kambhampati (Visakhapatnam)

Hay, Prof. Richard (Nominated)

Hazra, Dr. Anupam (Bolpur)

Hegde, Shri Anantkumar (Uttara Kannada)

Hemamalini, Shrimati (Mathura)

Hikaka, Shri Jhina (Koraput)

Hooda, Shri Deepender Singh (Rohtak)

Hukkeri, Shri Prakash B. (Chikkodi)

Innocent, Shri (Chalakkudy)

Jadhav, Shri Prataprao (Buldhana)

Jadhav, Shri Sanjay Haribhau (Parbhani)

Jaiswal, Dr. Sanjay (PaschimChamparan)

\*Jakhar, Shri Sunil Kumar (Gurdaspur)

Jardosh, ShrimatiDarshanaVikram (Surat)

Jatua, Shri Choudhury Mohan (Mathurapur)

Jaunapuria, Shri Sukhbir Singh (Tonk-SawaiMadhopur)

Jayadevan, Shri C. N. (Thrissur)

Jayavardhan, Dr. J. (Chennai South)

Jena, Shri Rabindra Kumar (Balasore)

Jigajinagi, Shri Ramesh (Bijapur)

Joshi, Dr. Murli Manohar (Kanpur)

<sup>\*</sup>Shri Sunil Kumar Jakhar took oath in Lok Sabha today i.e.15.12.2017

Joshi, Shri Chandra Prakash (Chittorgarh)

Joshi, Shri Pralhad (Dharwad)

Jyoti, Sadhvi Niranjan (Fatehpur)

Kachhadia, Shri Naranbhai (Amreli)

Kaiser, Choudhary Mehboob Ali (Khagaria)

Kalvakuntla, Shrimati Kavitha (Nizamabad)

Kamaraj, Dr. K. (Kallakurichi)

Karandlaje, KumariShobha (Udupi Chikmagalur)

Karunakaran, Shri P. (Kasargod)

Kashyap, Shri Dinesh (Bastar)

Kashyap, Shri Virender (Shimla)

Kaswan, Shri Rahul (Churu)

Kataria, Shri Rattan Lal (Ambala)

Kateel, Shri Nalin Kumar (Dakshina Kannada)

Katheria, Dr. Ramshankar (Agra)

Kaushik, Shri Ramesh Chander (Sonepat)

Khadse, ShrimatiRakshatai (Raver)

Khaire, Shri Chandrakant (Aurangabad)

Khalsa, Shri Harinder Singh (Fatehgarh Sahib)

Khan, Shri Md. Badaruddoza (Murshidabad)

Khan, Shri Saumitra (Bishanpur)

Khanduri AVSM (Retd.), Maj. Gen. B.C. (Garhwal)

Kharge, Shri Mallikarjun (Gulbarga)

Kher, ShrimatiKirron (Chandigarh)

Khuba, Shri Bhagwanth (Bidar)

Kinjarapu, Shri Ram Mohan Naidu (Srikakulam)

Kishore, Shri Jugal (Jammu)

Kishore, Shri Kaushal (Mohanlalganj)

Kirtikar, ShriGajanan (Mumbai North West)

Koli, Shri Bahadur Singh (Bharatpur)

Koshyari, Shri Bhagat Singh (Nainital-U.S.N.)

Kristappa, Shri N. (Hindupur)

Kulaste, Shri Faggan Singh (Mandla)

Kumar, Dr. Arun (Jahanabad)

Kumar, Dr. Virendra (Tikamgarh)

Kumar, Kunwar Sarvesh (Moradabad)

Kumar, Shri Ashwini (Karnal)

Kumar, Shri B. Vinod (Karimnagar)

Kumar, Shri Dharmendra (Aonla)

Kumar, Shri K. Ashok (Krishnagiri)

Kumar, Shri Kaushalendra (Nalanda)

Kumar, Shri P. (Tiruchirappalli)

Kumar, Shri Santosh (Purnea)

Kumar, Shri Shailesh (Bhagalpur)

Kumar, Shri Shanta (Kangra)

Kundariya, Shri MohanbhaiKalyanjibhai (Rajkot)

Kunhalikutty, Shri P.K. (Malappuram)

Kushawaha, Shri Ravinder (Salempur)

Kushwaha, Shri Upendra (Karakat)

Laguri, ShrimatiSakuntala (Keonjhar)

- Lakhanpal, Shri Raghav (Saharanpur)
- Lekhi, Shrimati Meenakashi (New Delhi)
- Lokhande, Shri Sadashiv (Shirdi)
- Maadam, ShrimatiPoonamben (Jamnagar)
- Mahadik, Shri Dhananjay (Kolhapur)
- Mahajan, Shrimati Poonam (North Central Mumbai)
- Mahajan, Shrimati Sumitra (Indore)
- Maharaj, Dr. Swami Sakshiji (Unnao)
- Mahato, Dr. Banshilal (Korba)
- Mahato, Dr. Mriganka (Purulia)
- Mahato, Shri Bidyut Baran (Jamshedpur)
- Mahtab, Shri Bhartruhari (Cuttack)
- Mahendran, Shri C. (Pollachi)
- Majhi, Shri Balbhadra (Nabarangpur)
- Malviya, Prof. Chintamani (Ujjain)
- Mandal, Dr. Tapas (Ranaghat)
- Mani, Shri Jose K. (Kottayam)
- Manjhi, Shri Hari (Gaya)
- Mann, Shri Bhagwant (Sangrur)
- Marabi, Shri Kamal Bhan Singh (Sarguja)
- Maragatham, Shrimati K. (Kancheepuram)
- Marutharajaa, Shri R. P. (Perambalur)
- Meena, Shri Arjun Lal (Udaipur)
- Meena, Shri Harish (Dausa)
- Meghwal, Shri Arjun Ram (Bikaner)

Meinya, Dr. Thokchom (Inner Manipur)

Mishra, Shri Anoop (Morena)

Mishra, Shri Bhairon Prasad (Banda)

Mishra, Shri Daddan (Shrawasti)

Mishra, Shri Janardan (Rewa)

Mishra, Shri Kalraj (Deoria)

Misra, Shri Pinaki (Puri)

Modi, Shri Narendra (Varanasi)

Mohan, Shri M. Murli (Rajahmundry)

Mohan, Shri P.C. (Bangalore Central)

Mohapatra, Dr. Sidhant (Berhampur)

Moily, Shri M. Veerappa (Chikkaballapur)

Mondal, Shri Sunil Kumar (BardhmanPurba)

Mondal, Shrimati Pratima (Jayanagar)

Mukherjee, Shri Abhijit (Jangipur)

Munda, Shri Karia (Khunti)

Munde, Dr. Pritam Gopinath (Beed)

Muniyappa, Shri K.H. (Kolar)

Nagar, Shri Rodmal (Rajgarh)

Nagarajan, Shri P. (Coimbatore)

Nagesh, Shri Godam (Adilabad)

Naik, Prof. A.S.R. (Mahabubabad)

Naik, Shri B.V. (Raichur)

Naik, Shri Shripad Yesso (North Goa)

Narasimham, Shri Thota (Kakinada)

Nath, Shri Kamal (Chhindwara) Natterjee, Shri J.J.T. (Thoothukudi) Nete, Shri Ashok Mahadeorao (Gadchiroli-chimur) Ninama, Shri Manshankar (Banswara) Nishad, Shri Ajay (Muzaffarpur) Nishad, Shri Ram Charitra (Machhlishahar) Nishank, Dr. Ramesh Pokhriyal (Haridwar) Noor, ShrimatiMausam (Maldaha) Oram, Shri Jual (Sundargarh) Owaisi, Shri Asaduddin (Hyderabad) Paatle, ShrimatiKamla (Janjgir-Champa) Pal, Shri Jagdambika (Domariyaganj) Pala, Shri Vincent H. (Shillong) Panda, Shri Baijayant Jay (Kendrapara) Pandey, Dr. MahendraNath (Chandauli) Pandey, Shri Hari Om (Ambedkar Nagar) Pandey, Shri Rajesh (Kushinagar) Pandey, Shri Ravindra Kumar (Giridih) Panneerselvam, Shri V. (Salem) Parasuraman, Shri K. (Thanjavur) Parthipan, Shri R. (Theni) Pasunoori, Shri Dayakar (Warangal) Paswan, Shri Chhedi (Sasaram) Paswan, Shri Chirag (Jamui) Paswan, Shri Kamlesh (Basgaon)

- Paswan, Shri Ram Chandra (Samastipur)
- Paswan, Shri Ramvilas (Hajipur)
- Patasani, Shri Prasanna Kumar (Bhubaneswar)
- Patel, Dr. K. C. (Valsad)
- Patel, Shri Devji M. (Jalore)
- Patel, Shri Dilip (Anand)
- Patel, Shri LalubhaiBabubhai (Daman & Diu)
- Patel, Shri NatubhaiGomanbhai (Dadra & Nagar Haveli)
- Patel, Shri Prahlad Singh (Damoh)
- Patel, Shri Subhash (Khargone)
- Patel, Shrimati Anupriya (Mirzapur)
- Patel, ShrimatiJayshreeben (Mahesana)
- Pathak, Shrimati Riti (Sidhi)
- Patil, Shri A.T. Nana (Jalgaon)
- Patil, Shri Bheemrao B. (Zaheerabad)
- Patil, Shri C. R. (Navsari)
- Patil, Shri Kapil Moreshwar (Bhiwandi)
- Patil, Shri Sanjay Kaka (Sangli)
- Paul, Shri Tapas (Krishnanagar)
- Phule, Sadhvi Savitri Bai (Bahraich)
- Poddar, ShrimatiAparupa (Arambag)
- Prabakaran, Shri K. R. P. (Tirunelveli)
- Pradhan, Shri Nagendra Kumar (Sambalpur)
- Prasad, Dr. Bhagirath (Bhind)
- Pratap, Shri Krishan (Jaunpur)

Premachandran, Shri N.K. (Kollam)

Raajhaa, Shri A. Anwhar (Ramanathapuram)

Radadiya, Shri VithalbhaiHansrajbhai (Porbandar)

Radhakrishnan, Shri Pon (Kanyakumari)

Radhakrishnan, Shri R. (Puducherry)

Radhakrishnan, Shri T. (Virudhunagar)

Raghavan, Shri M.K. (Kozhikode)

Rai, Shri Nityanand (Ujiarpur)

Rai, Shri Prem Das (Sikkim)

Raj, Dr. Udit (North West Delhi)

Raj, Shrimati Krishna (Shahjahanpur)

Rajbhar, Shri Harinarayan (Ghosi)

Rajendran, Shri S. (Viluppuram)

Rajesh, Shri M. B. (Palakkad)

Rajoria, Dr. Manoj (Karauli-Dholpur)

Rajput, Shri Mukesh (Farrukhabad)

Raju, Shri Ashok Gajapathi (Vizianagaram)

Raju, Shri C.S. Putta (Mandya)

Raju, Shri Gokaraju Ganga (Narsapuram)

Ram, Shri Janak (Gopalganj)

Ram, Shri Vishnu Dayal (Palamu)

Ramachandran, Shri K. N. (Sriperumbudur)

Ramachandran, Shri Mullappally (Vadakara)

Ramadoss, Dr. Anbumani (Dharmapuri)

Ranjan, Shri Rajesh (Madhepura)

- Ranjan, ShrimatiRanjeet (Supaul)
- Rao, Shri Konakalla Narayana (Machhilipatnam)
- Rao, Shri M. Venkateswara (Eluru)
- Rao (Avanthi), Shri MuthamsettiSrinivasa (Anakapalli)
- Rao, Shri RayapatiSambasiva (Narasaraopet)
- Rathod, Shri D.S. (Sabarkantha)
- Rathore (Retd.), Col. Rajyavardhan (Jaipur Rural)
- Rathore, Shri Hariom Singh (Rajsamand)
- Rathwa, Shri Ramsinh (Chhota Udaipur)
- Raut, Shri VinayakBhaurao (Ratnagiri-Sindhudurg)
- Raval, Shri Paresh (Ahmedabad-East)
- Rawat, Shrimati Priyanka Singh (Barabanki)
- Ray, Shri Bishnu Pada (Andaman and Nicobar Islands)
- Ray, Shri ParthaPratim (Coochbehar)
- Ray, Shri Ravindra Kumar (Kodarma)
- Reddy, Shri A.P. Jithender (Mahabubnagar)
- Reddy, Shri Ch. Malla (Malkajgiri)
- Reddy, Shri GuthaSukender (Nalgonda)
- Reddy, Shri J.C. Divakar (Anantapur)
- Reddy, Shri Konda Vishweshwar (Chevella)
- Reddy, Shri Kotha Prabhakar (Medak)
- Reddy, Shri Mekapati Raja Mohan (Nellore)
- Reddy, Shri P. Srinivasa (Khammam)
- Reddy, Shri P.V. Midhun (Rajampet)
- Reddy, Shri S. P.Y. (Nandyal)

Reddy, Shri Y. S. Avinash (Kadapa)

Reddy, Shri Y. V. Subba (Ongole)

Renuka, Shrimati Butta (Kurnool)

Rijiju, Shri Kiren (Arunachal West)

Rio, Shri Neiphiu (Nagaland)

Rori, Shri Charanjeet Singh (Sirsa)

Roy, Prof. Saugata (Dum Dum)

Roy, Shrimati Sandhya (Medinipur)

Roy, ShrimatiSatabdi (Birbhum)

Ruala, Shri C.L. (Mizoram)

Rudy, Shri Rajiv Pratap (Saran)

Sahu, Shri Chandulal (Mahasamund)

Sahu, Shri Lakhan Lal (Bilaspur)

Sahu, Shri Tamradhwaj (Durg)

Sai, Shri Vishnu Dev (Raigarh)

Saini, Shri Rajkumar (Kurukshetra)

Salim, Shri Mohammad (Raiganj)

Samal, Dr. Kulmani (Jagatsinghpur)

Sampla, Shri Vijay (Hoshiarpur)

Sampath, Dr. A. (Attingal)

Sanghamita, Dr. Mamtaz (Bardhman Durgapur)

Sangma, Shri C.K. (Tura)

Sanjar, Shri Alok (Bhopal)

Saren, Dr. Uma (Jhargram)

Sarmah, Shri Ram Prasad (Tezpur)

Sarnia, Shri Naba Kumar (Kokrajhar)

Sarswati, Shri Sumedhanand (Sikar)

Satav, Shri Rajeev (Hingoli)

Sathyabama, Shrimati V. (Tiruppur)

Satpathy, Shri Tathagata (Dhenkanal)

Sawaikar, Adv. Narendra Keshav (South Goa)

Sawant, Shri Arvind (Mumbai South)

Scindia, Shri Jyotiraditya M. (Guna)

Senguttuvan, Shri B. (Vellore)

Senthilnathan, Shri P. R. (Sivaganga)

Sethi, Shri Arjun Charan (Bhadrak)

Shah, Shrimati Mala Rajyalakshmi (Tehri Garhwal)

Shanavas, Shri M.I. (Wayanad)

Shankarrao, Shri MohitePatilVijaysinh (Madha)

Sharma, Dr. Mahesh (Gautam Buddha Nagar)

Sharma, Shri Ram Kumar (Sitamarhi)

Sharma, Shri Ram Swaroop (Mandi)

Shekhawat, Shri Gajendra Singh (Jodhpur)

Shetty, Shri Gopal (Mumbai North)

Shetty, Shri Raju (Hatkanangle)

Shewale, Shri Rahul (Mumbai South Central)

Shinde, Dr. Shrikant Eknath (Kalyan)

Shirole, Shri Anil (Pune)

Shivajirao, Shri AdhalraoPatil (Shirur)

Shyal, Dr. Bhartiben D. (Bhavnagar)

- Siddeshwara, Shri G. M. (Davangere)
- Sigriwal, Shri Janardan Singh (Maharajganj)
- Simha, Shri Pratap (Mysore)
- Singh, Dr. Bhola (Begusarai)
- Singh, Dr. Jitendra (Udhampur)
- Singh, Dr. Nepal (Rampur)
- Singh, Dr. Prabhas Kumar (Bargarh)
- Singh, Dr. Satya Pal (Baghpat)
- Singh, Dr. Yashwant (Nagina)
- Singh (Retd), Gen. Vijay Kumar (Ghaziabad)
- Singh, KunwarBharatendra (Bijnor)
- Singh, KunwarHaribansh (Pratapgarh)
- Singh, Prof. Sadhu (Faridkot)
- Singh, Rao Inderjit (Gurgaon)
- Singh, Shri Abhishek (Rajnandgaon)
- Singh, Shri Bharat (Ballia)
- Singh, Shri Bhola (Bulandshahr)
- Singh, Shri BrijbhushanSharan (Kaiserganj)
- Singh, Shri Dushyant (Jhalawar-Baran)
- Singh, Shri Ganesh (Satna)
- Singh, Shri Giriraj (Nawada)
- Singh, Shri Gyan (Shahdol)
- Singh, Shri Hukum (Kairana)
- Singh, Shri Kirti Vardhan (Gonda)
- Singh, Shri Lallu (Faizabad)

- Singh, Shri Nagendra (Khajuraho)
- Singh, Shri Pashupati Nath (Dhanbad)
- Singh, Shri R. K. (Arrah)
- Singh, Shri Radha Mohan (East Champaran)
- Singh, Shri Rajnath (Lucknow)
- Singh (Raju Bhaiya), Shri Rajveer (Etah)
- Singh, Shri Rakesh (Jabalpur)
- Singh, Shri Rama Kishore (Vaishali)
- Singh, Shri Ravneet (Ludhiana)
- Singh, Shri Satyapal (Sambhal)
- Singh, Shri Sunil Kumar (Chatra)
- Singh, Shri Sushil Kumar (Aurangabad)
- Singh, Shri UdayPratap (Hoshangabad)
- Singh, Shri Virendra (Bhadohi)
- Singh, Shrimati PratyushaRajeshwari (Kandhamal)
- Sinha, Shri Jayant (Hazaribagh)
- Sinha, Shri Manoj (Ghazipur)
- Sinha, Shri Shatrughan (Patna Sahib)
- Sivaprasad, Shri Naramalli (Chittoor)
- Solanki, Dr. Kirit P. (Ahmedabad)
- Somaiya, Dr. Kirit (Mumbai North East)
- Sonkar, Shri Vinod Kumar (Kaushambi)
- Sonker, ShrimatiNeelam (Lalganj)
- Soren, Shri Shibu (Dumka)
- Srinivas, Shri Kesineni (Vijayawada)

Sriram, Shri Malyadri (Bapatla) Sriramulu, Shri B. (Bellary) Sule, Shrimati Supriya (Baramati) Suman, Shri Balka (Peddapalli) Sundaram, Shri P. R. (Namakkal) Supriyo, Shri Babul (Asansol) Suresh, Shri D.K. (Bangalore Rural) Suresh, Shri Kodikunnil (Mavelikkara) Swain, Shri Ladu Kishore (Aska) Swaraj, Shrimati Sushma (Vidisha) Tadas, Shri Ramdas C. (Wardha) Tamta, Shri Ajay (Almora) Tanwar, Shri Kanwar Singh (Amroha) Tarai, Shrimati Rita (Jajpur) Tasa, Shri Kamakhya Prasad (Jorhat) Teacher, Shrimati P.K. Shreemathi (Kannur) Teli, Shri Rameshwar (Dibrugarh) Teni, Shri Ajay Misra (Kheri) Thakur, Shri Anurag Singh (Hamirpur) Thakur, ShrimatiMamata (Vangaon) Thakur, Shrimati Savitri (Dhar) Thambidurai, Dr. M. (Karur) Tharoor, Dr. Shashi (Thiruvananthapuram) Thomas, Prof. K.V. (Ernakulam) Tirkey, Shri Dasrath (Alipurduars)

Tiwari, Shri Manoj (North East Delhi) Tomar, Shri Narendra Singh (Gwalior) Tripathi, Shri Sharad (Sant Kabir Nagar) Trivedi, Shri Dinesh (Barrackpur) Tumane, Shri KrupalBalaji (Ramtek) Udasi, Shri Shivkumar (Haveri) Udhayakumar, Shri M. (Dindigul) Usendi, Shri Vikram (Kanker) Utawal, Shri Manohar (Devas) Vaghela, Shri L. K. (Patan) Vanaroja, Shrimati R. (Tiruvannamalai) Vardhan, Dr. Harsh (Chandni Chowk) Varma, Shrimati Dev (Bankura) Vasanthi, Shrimati M. (Tenkasi) Vasava, Shri ManshukhbhaiDhanjibhai (Bharuch) Vasava, Shri ParbhubhaiNagarbhai (Bardoli) Velagapalli, Shri Varaprasad Rao (Tirupati) Venkatesh Babu, Shri T. G. (Chennai North) Venugopal, Dr. P. (Tiruvallur) Venugopal, Shri K. C. (Alappuzha) Verma, Dr. Anshul (Hardoi) Verma, Shri Bhanu Pratap Singh (Jalaun) Verma, Shri Parvesh Sahib Singh (West Delhi) Verma, Shri Rajesh (Sitapur)

Verma, ShrimatiRekha (Dhaurahra)

Vichare, Shri Rajan (Thane)

Vijaya Kumar, Shri S. R. (Chennai Central)

Wanga, Shri ChintamanNavasha (Palghar)

Yadav, Shri Akshay (Firozabad)

Yadav, Shri Dharmendra (Badaun)

Yadav, Shri Hukmdeo Narayan (Madhubani)

Yadav, Shri Jai Prakash Narayan (Banka)

Yadav, Shri Laxmi Narayan (Sagar)

Yadav, Shri Mulayam Singh (Azamgarh)

Yadav, Shri Om Prakash (Siwan)

Yadav, Shri Ram Kripal (Pataliputra)

Yadav, Shri Tej Pratap Singh (Mainpuri)

Yadav, Shrimati Dimple (Kannauj)

Yediyurappa, Shri B.S. (Shimoga)

Yellaiah, Shri Nandi (Nagar Kurnool)

### **OFFICERS OF LOK SABHA**

### **THE SPEAKER**

Shrimati Sumitra Mahajan

#### THE DEPUTY SPEAKER

Dr. M. Thambidurai

### PANEL OF CHAIRPERSONS

Shri Arjun Charan Sethi Shri Hukmdeo Narayan Yadav Shri AnandraoAdsul Shri Pralhad Joshi Dr. Ratna De (Nag) Shri Ramen Deka Shri Konakalla Narayana Rao Shri Hukum Singh Shri K.H. Muniyappa Dr. P. Venugopal

### SECRETARY GENERAL

Shrimati Snehlata Shrivastava

## **COUNCIL OF MINISTERS**

## **CABINET MINISTERS**

Shri Narendra Modi	The Prime Minister and also in-charge of:	
	<ul> <li>(i) Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances and Pensions;</li> <li>(ii) (ii) Department of Atomic Energy;</li> <li>(iii) Department of Space and All important Policy issues and all other portfolios not allocated to any Minister.</li> </ul>	
Shri Rajnath Singh	The Minister of Home Affairs	
Shrimati Sushma Swaraj	The Minister of External Affairs	
Shri Arun Jaitley	The Minister of Finance and Minister of Corporate Affairs	
Shri Nitin Gadkari	The Minister of Road Transport and Highways; Minister of Shipping and Minister of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation	
Shri Suresh Prabhu	The Minister of Commerce and Industry	
Shri D.V. Sadananda Gowda	The Minister of Statistics and Programme Implementation	
Sushri Uma Bharti	The Minister of Drinking Water and	

## Sanitation

Shri RamvilasPaswan The Minister of Consumer Affairs, Fo and Public Distribution	
Shrimati Maneka Sanjay Gandhi	The Minister of Women and Child Development
Shri Ananthkumar	The Minister of Chemicals and Fertilizers and Minister of Parliamentary Affairs
Shri Ravi Shankar Prasad	The Minister of Law and Justice and Minister of Electronics and Information Technology
Shri Jagat Prakash Nadda	The Minister of Health and Family Welfare
Shri Ashok Gajapathi Raju	The Minister of Civil Aviation
Shri AnantGangaramGeete	The Minister of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises
Shrimati Harsimrat Kaur Badal	The Minister of Food Processing Industries
Μ	ne Minister of Rural Development; inister of Panchayati Raj and inister of Mines

Shri Chaudhary Birender Singh	The Minister of Steel
Shri Jual Oram	The Minister of Tribal Affairs
Shri Radha Mohan Singh	The Minister of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare
Shri Thaawar Chand Gehlot	The Minister of Social Justice and Empowerment
Shrimati Smriti Zubin Irani	The Minister of Textiles and Minister of Information and Broadcasting
Dr. Harsh Vardhan	The Minister of Science and Technology, Minister of Earth Sciences and Minister of Environment, Forest and Climate Change
Shri Prakash Javadekar	The Minister of Human Resource Development
Shri Dharmendra Pradhan	The Minister of Petroleum and Natural Gas and Minister of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship
Shri Piyush Goyal	The Minister of Railways and Minister of Coal

Shrimati Nirmala Sitharaman

The Minister of Defence

Shri Mukhtar Abbas Naqvi

The Minister of Minority Affairs

## **MINISTERS OF STATE (INDEPENDENT CHARGE)**

Rao Inderjit Singh	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Planning and Minister of State in the Ministry of Chemicals and Fertilizers
Shri Santosh Kumar Gangwar	
Shri Shripad Yesso Naik	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Ayurveda, Yoga and Naturopathy, Unani, Siddha and Homoeopathy (AYUSH)
Dr. Jitendra Singh	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Development of North Eastern Region, Minister of State in the Prime Minister's Office, Minister of State in the Ministry of Personnel, Public Grievances and Pensions, Minister of State in the Department of Atomic Energy and Minister of State in the Department of State in the Department
Dr. Mahesh Sharma	State in the Department of Space The Minister of State of the Ministry of Culture and Minister of State in the Ministry of Environment, Forest and Climate Change
Shri Giriraj Singh	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Entrerprises
Shri Manoj Sinha	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Communications and Minister of State in the Ministry of Railways
Col. Rajyavardhan Rat (Retd.)	hore The Minister of State of the Ministry of the Youth Affairs and Sports and Minister of State in the Ministry of Information and Broadcasting
Shri R.K. Singh	The Minister of State of the Ministry of Power and Minister of State of the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy

Shri Hardeep Singh Puri	The Minister of State of the Ministry	
	of Housing and Urban Affairs	
Shri AlphonsKannanthanam	The Minister of State of the Ministry	
	of Tourism and Minister of State in	
	the Ministry of Electronics and	
	Information Technology	

## **MINISTERS OF STATE**

Shri Vijay Goel	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs and Minister of State in the Ministry of Statistics and
Shri Pon Radhakrishnan	Programme Implementation The Minister of State in the Ministry of Finance and Minister of State in the Ministry of Shipping
Shri S.S. Ahluwalia	The Ministry of State in the Ministry of Drinking Water and Sanitation
Shri Ramesh Jigajinagi	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Drinking Water and Sanitation
Shri Ramdas Athawale	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment
Shri Vishnu Dev Sai	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Steel
Shri Ram Kripal Yadav	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Rural Development
Shri Hansraj Gangaram Ahir	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Home Affairs
Shri Haribhai Chaudhary	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Mines and Minister of State in the Ministry of Coal
Shri Rajen Gohain	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Railways
Gen. Vijay Kumar Singh (Retd.) Shri ParshottamRupala	The Minister of State in the Ministry of External Affairs The Minister of State in the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare
Shri KrishanpalGurjar	andMinister of State in the Ministry of Panchayati Raj The Minister of State in the Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment
Shri JasvantsinhSumanbhaiBhabhor Shri Shiv Pratap Shukla	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Tribal Affairs The Minister of State in the Ministry ofFinance
Shri Ashwini Kumar Choubey	The Minister of State in the Ministry of

Shri Sudarshan Bhagat	Health and Family Welfare The Minister of State in the Ministry of Tribals Affairs
Shri Upendra Kushwaha	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Human Resource Development
Shri Kiren Rijiju	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Home Affairs
Dr. Virendra Kumar	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Women and Child Development and of State in the Ministry of Minority Affairs
Shri AnantkumarHegde	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Skill Development and Entrepreneurship
Shri M. J. Akbar	The Minister of State in the Ministry of External Affairs
Sadhvi Niranjan Jyoti	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Food Processing Industries
Shri Y. S. Chowdary	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Science and Technology and Minister of State in the Ministry of Earth Sciences
Shri Jayant Sinha	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Civil Aviation
Shri Babul Supriyo	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises
Shri Vijay Sampla	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Social Justice and Empowerment
Shri Arjun Ram Meghwal	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Parliamentary Affairs and Minister of State in the Ministry of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation
Shri Ajay Tamta	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Textiles
Shrimati Krishna Raj	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Agriculture and Farmers Welfare
Shri Mansukh L. Mandaviya	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Road Transport and Highways, Minister of State in the Ministry of Shipping and Minister of State in the Ministry of

	Chemicals and Fertilizers
Shrimati Anupriya Patel	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Health and Family Welfare
Shri C. R. Chaudhary	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Consumer Affairs, Food and Public
	Distributionand Minister of State in the
	Ministry of Commerce and Industries
Shri P.P. Chaudhary	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Law and Justice and Minister of State in
	the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
Dr. SubhashRamraoBhamre	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Defence
Shri Gajendra Singh Shekhawat	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Agriculture and Farmers Welfare
Dr. Satya Pal Singh	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Human Resource Development and
	Minister of State in the Ministry of
	Water Resources, River Development
	and Ganga Rejuvenation

### LOK SABHA DEBATES

Vol. XXVII	First day of Thirteenth Session of Sixteenth Lok Sabha	No.1
------------	--	------

### LOK SABHA

\_\_\_\_\_

Friday, December 15, 2017/Agrahayana 24, 1939 (Saka)

The Lok Sabha met at Eleven of the Clock

[HON. SPEAKER in the Chair]

## NATIONAL ANTHEM

(The National Anthem was played.)

**<u>11.01 hours</u>** 

.

## **MEMBER SWORN**

**HON. SPEAKER:** Secretary-General may now call the name of newly elected Member in recent bye-election to take the oath.

**SECRETARY GENERAL:** Shri Sunil Kumar Jakhar.

Shri Sunil Kumar Jakhar - Oath - Punjabi (Gurdaspur)

#### <u>11.02 hours</u>

#### **INTRODUCTION OF MINISTERS**

#### [Translation]

**HON. SPEAKER:** Hon. Prime Minister may introduce the Council of Ministers to the House now.

**PRIME MINISTER (SHRI NARENDRA MODI):** Hon. Speaker sir, with your due permission, through you, I would like to introduce the Council of Ministers to the House.

## CABINET MINISTER

Shri Dharmendra Pradhan, Minister of Petroleum and Natural Gas and Minister of Skill Development & Entrepreneurship.Shri Piyush Goyal, Minister of Railways and Minister of Coal.Shrimati Nirmala Sitharaman, Minister of Defence.Shri Mukhtar Abbas Naqvi, Minister of Minority Affairs.

## **MINISTERS OF STATE (INDEPENDENT CHARGE)**

Shri R.K. Singh, Minister of State of the Ministry of Power and Minister of State of the Ministry of New and Renewable Energy.Shri Hardeep Singh Puri, Minister of State of the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs.

Shri KannanthanamAlphons, Minister of State of the Ministry of Tourism and Minister of State in the Ministry of Electronics & Information Technology.

# **MINISTER OF STATE**

Shri	Shiv	Pratap	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
Shukla			Finance
Dr. Virendra Kumar		ımar	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
			Women and Child Development and
			Minister of State in the Ministry of Minority
			Affairs.
Shri			The Minister of State in the Ministry of
AnantkumarHegde			Skill Development and Entrepreneurship.
Shri G	ajendra	Singh	The Minister of State in the Ministry of
Shekhawat			Agriculture and Farmers Welfare
Dr. Sat	ya Pal Si	ngh	The Minister of State in the Ministry of Human Resource Development and Minister of State in the Ministry of Water Resources, River Development and Ganga Rejuvenation.

**HON. SPEAKER:** Thank You.Congratulations to all of you.

#### <u>11.06 hours</u>

## <u>ANNOUNCEMENT BY THE SPEAKER</u> Appointment of Secretary General, Lok Sabha

**HON. SPEAKER:** Hon. Members, I have to inform the House that Shrimati Snehlata Shrivastava has been appointed as Secretary General of the Lok Sabha and Lok Sabha Secretariat w.e.f. 1st December, 2017.Shrimati Shrivastava has the administrative experience of more than 35 years.She has also worked as Secretary in the Department of Justice, Government of India. I believe that the House will benefit from the vast experience of Shrimati Shrivastava and she will discharge her responsibilities and duties as the first woman Secretary General of Lok Sabha with dedication and integrity.

I also have to inform the House that Shri Anoop Mishra has relinquished the office of the Secretary General of the Lok Sabha after completing his tenure on 30th November, 2017. Shri Mishra's vast knowledge of Parliamentary work, procedures and constitutional matters helped the Presiding Officers and the Members on the Panel of Chairpersons in conducting the proceedings of the House smoothly. Through his efficient administrative skill, he successfully performed the work related to administration and the welfare of the officers and the staff of the Secretariat.

In recognition of his services, I have immense pleasure in announcing that Shri Anoop Mishra has been nominated as Honorary Officer of the House.

On behalf of myself and the Hon.Members, I wish him good health and success in the future.

#### **<u>11.08 hours</u>**

#### **OBITUARY REFERENCES**

**HON. SPEAKER:** Hon. Members, I have to inform the House about the sad demise of our three current colleagues namely, Shri Sultan Ahmed, Shri Chand Nath and Shri Taslimuddin and seven former Members, namely, Shri Vikram Mahajan, Shri Ram Singh, Shri R. Keishing, Shri P.C. Barman, Shri Dhanraj Singh, Shri Amal Dutta and Shri PriyaRanjanDasmunsi.

Shri Sultan Ahmedwas a sitting Member representing the Uluberia Parliamentary Constituency of West Bengal.He was also a Member of the 15th Lok Sabha.

He was a Union Minister of State of the Ministry of Tourism from the year 2009-2012.

Shri Ahmed was a member of the Committee on External Affairs during the 15th Lok Sabha and a member of the Committee on Estimates, Committee on Commerce and Committee on Energy during the 16th Lok Sabha.

Earlier, Shri Ahmed was a Member of the West Bengal Legislative Assembly for two terms.

Shri Sultan Ahmed passed away on 4th September, 2017 in Kolkata, West Bengal at the age of 64.

Shri Chand Nath was a sitting Member representing the Alwar Parliamentary Constituency of Rajasthan.

Shri Chand Nath was a Member of the Committee on Human Resource Development.

Shri Chand Nath was also a Member of the Rajasthan Legislative Assembly from 2004 to 2008.

Shri Chand Nath passed away on 17th September, 2017 in New Delhi at the age of 61.

Shri Taslimuddin was a sitting Member representing the Araria Parliamentary Constituency in Bihar.He was also a Member of the 9th, 11th, 12th and 14th Lok Sabha.

Shri Taslimuddin was a Union Minister of State in the Ministry of Home Affairs in 1996 and was also a Minister of State in the Ministry of Agriculture and in the Ministry of Consumer Affairs, Food and Public Distribution from the year 2004 to 2009.

Shri Taslimuddin was also a member of various Parliamentary Committees during his long Parliamentary career.

Earlier, he was also a Member of the Bihar Legislative Assembly for eight terms and served as Minister of Housing in the Government of Bihar from 2000to 2004.

Shri Taslimuddin passed away on 17th September, 2017 in Chennai, Tamil Nadu at the age of 74.

Shri Vikram Mahajanwas a Member of the fourth Lok Sabha from Chamba Parliamentary Constituency in Himachal Pradesh and represented the Kangra Parliamentary Constituency in Himachal Pradesh during the fifth and seventh Lok Sabha.

He was a Union Minister of State in the Ministry of Energy from 1980 to 1983.

Shri Mahajan was Chairman of Committee on Subordinate Legislation and Joint Select Committee on Separation of Judiciary from Executive. He was a member of the Committee of Privileges and Committee on Private Members' Bills and Resolutions.

Shri Vikram Mahajan passed away on 11th August, 2016 in Delhi at the age of 84.

Shri Ram Singhwas a Member of the ninth Lok Sabha representing the Sultanpur Parliamentary Constituency in Uttar Pradesh.

Earlier, Shri Ram Singh was a Member of the Uttar Pradesh Legislative Assembly from 1980 to 1984.

Shri Ram Singh passed away on 10th August, 2017 in Sultanpur, Uttar Pradesh at the age of 68.

Shri R. Keishingwas a Member of the first and third Lok Sabha representing the Outer Manipur Parliamentary Constituency in Manipur.

Shri Keishing was a member of the Committee on Public Accounts during the third Lok Sabha.

He was a Member of the Manipur Legislative Assembly from 1972 to 2002 for seven terms and served as Chief Minister of Manipur for five times. He was also a Member of the Rajya Sabha twice from 2002 to 2014.

A veteran politician and one of the oldest Parliamentarians, Shri Keishing worked for the educational and economic upliftment of the tribal people and for preservation of their customs and cultures.

Shri R. Keishing passed away on 22nd August, 2017 in Imphal, Manipur at the age of 95.

Shri P. C. Barmanwas a Member of the third Lok Sabha representing the Coochbehar Parliamentary Constituency in West Bengal.

An active social and political worker, Shri Barman worked for welfare of the backward and downtrodden sections of the society.

Shri P. C. Barman passed away on 27th August, 2017 in Coochbehar, West Bengal at the age of 85.

Shri Dhanraj Singhwas a Member of the ninth Lok Sabha representing the Munger Parliamentary Constituency in Bihar.

He was a member of the Committee on Estimates.

Earlier, Shri Dhanraj was a Member of the Bihar Legislative Council from 1980 to 1986.

Shri Dhanraj Singh passed away on 12th October, 2017 in Patna, Bihar at the age of 73.

Shri Amal Duttawas a Member of the 7th to 10th Lok Sabha representing the Diamond Harbour Parliamentary Constituency in West Bengal.

Shri Dutta was Chairman of the Public Accounts and a member of the Committee on Subordinate Legislation, Committee of Privileges, Business Advisory Committee, General Purposes Committee and the Joint Select Committee on the Lokpal Bill.

A lawyer by profession, Shri Dutta served as an advocate in Kolkata High Court and was a visiting Professor (Guest Professor) at the Indian Institute of Management, Kolkata.

Shri Amal Dutta passed away on 20th October, 2017 in Kolkata, West Bengal at the age of 84.

Shri PriyaRanjanDasmunsi represented the Kolkata South Parliamentary Constituency in West Bengal during the 5th Lok Sabha. He also represented the Howrah Parliamentary Constituency in West Bengal during the 8th and 11th Lok Sabha and the Raiganj Parliamentary Bengal Constituency West during the 13th and in 14th LokSabha.ShriDasmunsi was a Member of various Parliamentary Committees during his Membership in the Lok Sabha. Shri PriyaRanjanDasmunsi was a Union Minister of Water Resources; Information and Broadcasting and Parliamentary Affairs during the 14th LokSabha.He was also a Union Minister of State in the Ministry of Commerce during the 8th Lok Sabha.

A sports enthusiast, Shri Dasmunsi served as President of the All India Football Federation and the Vice President of the Indian Olympic Association and worked for the promotion of sports, particularly football, in the country.A man of letters, Shri Dasmunsi was the editor of a Bengali magazine 'DakhineeBaarta' and he got published several books. We all know him very well, he was very popular among all of us.

Shri PriyaRanjanDasmunsi passed away on 20th November, 2017 in Delhi at the age of 72.

We deeply mourn the loss of Shri Sultan Ahmed, Shri Chand Nath, Shri Taslimuddin and seven of our former colleagues. I am sure the House would join me in conveying our condolences to the bereaved families. Now, the House Members will stand in silence for a while.

## **11.16 hours**

The Members then stood in silence for a short while.

## **\*WRITTEN ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS**

Starred Question Nos. 1 to 20

\*Unstarred Question Nos. 1 to 38, 40 to 198 and 200 to 230

<sup>\*</sup>Unstarred Question No.39 and 199 were deleted due to resignation by the Member.

[English]

**HON. SPEAKER:** The House stands adjourned to meet on Monday, the 18<sup>th</sup> December, 2017 at 11 a.m.

<sup>\*</sup>For Questions, please refer to Master copy of English version, placed in Library.

You can also visit <u>https://sansad.in/ls/questions/questions-and-answers</u> for more information.

## <u>11.18 hours</u>

*The Lok Sabha then adjourned till Eleven of the Clock* on Monday, December 18, 2017/Agrahayana 27, 1939 (Saka).

#### **INTERNET**

The Original version, English version and Hindi Version of Lok Sabha proceedings are available on Parliament of India Website at the following address:

https://sansad.in/ls

#### LIVE TELECAST OF PROCEEDINGS OF LOK SABHA

Lok Sabha proceedings are telecast live on Sansad TV Channel. Live telecast begins at 11 A.M. every day the Lok Sabha sits till the adjournment of the House.

## ©2017 By Lok Sabha Secretariat

Published under Rules 379 and 382 of the Rules of Procedure and Conduct of Business in Lok Sabha (Seventeenth Edition)